
 

  

 

   
 

 

RFP Webinar - February 2, 2021 

Questions & Answers 
 

Will you provide a video recording of the webinar? If so, where can we access it? 
Yes. The webinar is posted here: https://zoom.us/rec/share/kNAksA5f85hn8QmuANL8NK5ODwz91t37PeIFBfc2ZQxf-
rwo6WQbBFApdN_kdASE.Ts-DoD6nw_K4To9a  
 
Is attending the webinar mandatory to apply for a grant?  
The webinar was optional, it is not a requirement for applying for a grant under this RFP. If you would like to view the 
webinar, it is posted here: https://zoom.us/rec/share/kNAksA5f85hn8QmuANL8NK5ODwz91t37PeIFBfc2ZQxf-
rwo6WQbBFApdN_kdASE.Ts-DoD6nw_K4To9a  
 
Are community based organizations (CBOs) able to apply for both Spark and Partnership grants? 
A CBO should apply to one of the two grants. If the review panel believes the CBO should have applied for the alternate 
grant type, it will change the grant type consideration without a scoring penalty to the CBO proposal.  
 
If an entity works in two counties, does one county need to be chosen for the application? 
For the purpose of the online application, select the county where the majority of the work will be conducted. In the narrative, you 
can discuss any additional counties where the work will take place. Remember, all grant activities must take place within the six-
county SCAG region: Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, and Ventura.  Projects can be at neighborhood, 
community, county or regional scale. The lead applicant must be incorporated in the county(ies) in which the grant activities will 
take place. 
 
What is the expected timeframe, and can the performance period be extended? 
The timeline for the RFP is listed in the “Grant Terms and Initiative Timeline” section of the RFP. 
We request that all proposed projects adhere to the timeline in the RFP. We can potentially work with grantees on an 
individual basis if an extension is necessary, but this is not guaranteed. 
 
Would an eligible use of funds include community engagement regarding individual housing projects or feasibility 
studies for onsite amenities such as a grocery store? 
No, funds cannot be used towards community engagement for individual housing projects or a feasibility study for 
onsite amenities. Community engagement must be more widely cast to involve a program or policy specifically showing 
a nexus to housing production.  
 
Is there any preference for projects that are focused on the regional level, county level or single-jurisdiction level? 
There is no preference. We would like to understand how you are engaging with the community and local stakeholders 
regarding housing production at any geographic level. 
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How does this RFP compare or overlap with SCAG’s Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) grants? 
This RFP can support CBOs to engage with or augment other programs that have been funded by REAP grants or create 
related policies or recommendations. The proposed projects should clearly differentiate the funding source that each 
program or activity covers.  
 
If you are a young or small nonprofit and have not been audited yet, can you still apply? How do we handle the 
requirement of submitting financial reports? 
Yes, you are still eligible to apply. You can submit your profit and loss report and a balance sheet and indicate that the 
numbers have not been audited yet. Additionally, an organization can submit year-end financial statements such as 
Form-990 for the last completed fiscal year.  
 
Some CBOs operate as projects of larger fiscal sponsor organizations. Would a CBO working in Southern California, 
but with a fiscal sponsor in Northern California, be eligible? 
Yes, as long as the proposed activities take place within SCAG’s region. The lead applicant must be incorporated in the 
county(ies) in which the grant activities will take place. 
 
Is this RFP mainly for developer agencies or also other CBOs like homeless services agencies? 
There is no preference for the agency that applies to the RFP. As long as the organization that is applying (or partnering 
with a government entity) has a 503(c)(3) designation and the specified program or project fits into the guidelines and 
objectives of the program. Note that  homelessness activities involving temporary housing or shelter units do not 
constitute “housing units” and are therefore not eligible for the Call for Collaboration, per REAP guidelines.   
 
If there is a collaboration between organizations, do we need to provide financials for all the organizations involved 
or just the lead applicant? 
Financials should be submitted by the lead applicant. If needed, CCF or SCAG may reach out to ask for financial 
information from other partners. 
 
If multiple organizations apply as a partnership, is there a preference for who the lead organization is on the 
application? Would the largest of the organizations be best to list or the one budgeted to receive the most funding? 
There is no recommendation or preference for who the lead organization should be when applying. 
 
What are the distinctions between Spark Grants and Partnership Grants? 
Spark Grants are smaller, of about $50,000, designed to get a program off the ground through capacity-building. Only 
CBOs are eligible to receive a Spark Grant. 
 
Partnership Grants provide more funding of up to $125,000 to expand projects that have already been started. Public 
agencies can apply to the Partnership Grant but must apply in partnership with a 501(c)(3) designated organization.  
 
  



 

  

 

   
 

 

How will CCF and SCAG facilitate technical assistance (TA)? 
SCAG and CCF have hired a consultant to provide technical assistance (TA) to awardees. Once awardees have been 
finalized, outreach will be conducted to identify grantee TA needs, through one-on-one meetings and partnership 
meetings. TA will be provided for both Spark grants and Partnership grants. 
 
Does applying for REAP preclude applying for these grants? 
No. If you have applied for and received REAP funding you are still eligible to apply for the Partnership grant. 
 
Are public agencies the only eligible lead for Partnership Grants? 
No, a CBO can be the lead applicant for a Partnership Grant.  
 
Can funding be used for staffing if a non-profit is relatively new? 
Yes, funding can be used for staffing if a new project or program is being established. 
 
What are examples of projects for Spark and Partnership Grants? 
Eligible activities and examples that can be funded through these grants can be found in the “Grant Terms and Initiative 
Timeline” section of the RFP website. 
 
Is there going to be a template for a budget? 
Yes, SCAG can provide budget template. 
 
Can the Call for Collaboration fund implementation of an inclusionary housing ordinance? 
Yes, it can help fund implementation. For example, this can fund educating the public about a housing ordinance. 
 
Will the application be stronger if there are two projects associated [for example community land trusts (CLT) and 
accessory dwelling units (ADU)]? 
No, the application will not necessarily be stronger if there are two projects involved.  
 
Can a city apply for the grant and use funds towards an ADU ordinance or ADU prototype? 
Yes, the funds can be used towards ADU ordinances & prototypes. Some local jurisdictions and subregions have elected 
to use LEAP & REAP funding for ADU related policies and programs.  We highly encourage cities and partners to find out 
if funds have already been granted for this work.  If this work is already funded, an application may want to consider 
how to boost community engagement in the development of these policies, prototypes, etc. 
 
Could the proposed project be an analysis of suitable sites in the region for a specific type of affordable housing or a 
specific approach such as transit-oriented development (TOD) or housing with access to open space? 
Yes. These approaches can be funded though the LEAP and REAP programs as well. We highly encourage cities and 
partners to find out if funds have already been granted for this work.  As noted above, if this work is funded through 
another means, this call could be used to create deeper community engagement in and education about the work. 



 

  

 

   
 

 

 
What if the housing organization is not a 501(c)(3)? 
The organization applying will need to be a 501(c)(3) organization or have a fiscal sponsor that is a 501(c)(3) 
organization. CCF can only grant the funds to an organization that has 501(c)(3) designation. 
 
How do we find out if our jurisdiction received REAP or LEAP funds? 
Please reach out to SCAG to find out if your jurisdiction or region has received REAP or LEAP funds.  You can email Alisha 
James at james@scag.ca.gov 
 
Would the development of supportive community style ADUs such as tiny homes for justice impacted people be 
considered temporary housing? 
It would need to determine whether the ADU itself is considered permanent housing. If it is being used as a shelter or 
temporary housing it would generally not be counted as a housing unit. It is recommended to contact the Department of 
Housing and Community Development to determine whether supportive community housing, such as tiny homes, would 
be considered a housing unit.  
 
How many grants will be made available in each category – partnership and spark? 
There is not a set allocation of funding between the categories. The evaluation team will consider the applications and 
seek to ensure a strong geographic coverage as well as fund a range of programs. 
 
In the CCF application portal, will cities show up when searching for your ‘organization’? 
Depending on whether the city has used the system, it may or may not show up. Try searching for your city first and if it 
does not come up, you can register your city. There will be an approval process of 24-48 hours if your city is not already 
in the system. 
 
Are there any character count limitations for the application? 
Throughout the application, for any narrative field where responses are required, there is a character count limit 
underneath the box that has the available text field. The character count limit displayed also serves as a character 
counter that counts down the remaining characters for the field as you type. Each text field will have varying character 
limitations. 
 
If the lead applicant has a fiscal sponsor, can the sponsorship fee be listed as a line item in the budget? 
Yes, but sponsorship fee will be considered an administrative cost which is capped at 5% of the total requested grant.  
 
Is this grant administered through CCF or SCAG? 
Grant will be paid and administered through CCF, with SCAG as a close partner in monitoring progress.  
 
  



 

  

 

   
 

 

If a 501c3 nonprofit is applying as lead for a Partnership Grant, is it optional or mandatory to have a partner?  
Partnerships are optional for both grant types; however, supporting partnerships and collaboration is a goal of this 
program and part of the selection criteria.  
 
The RFP implies that joint applications are expected; will CCF be prioritizing joint applications or are sole applicants 
equally considered as long as strong partnerships and plans for collaboration are demonstrated in the initiative? 
Partnerships do not have to be formalized at the time of submitting applications, so there is no preference between sole 
applicants and partner applicants. Applicant should outline any potential partnerships and why they believe the 
partnerships will be successful.  
 
If a 501c3 nonprofit is applying as lead for a Partnership Grant, is it mandatory to have a government partner?  
No, a 501c3 is not required to partner with a government agency.  
 
If a 501c3 nonprofit is applying as lead for a Partnership Grant with a government partner, is it mandatory that the 
CBO give a portion of the grant funds to the government partner?   
No, there is no requirement to regrant funds.  
 
If a lead applicant has applied to REAP/LEAP funding, if the lead applicant is awarded these grants is it allowed to 
subgrant to CBO's? 
Yes, a lead applicant can subgrant to partner agencies/organizations as long as the funds are used for eligible activities. 
  
What defines a "partnership" for the purpose of a Partnership Grant? 
A “partnership” is a formal or informal relationship between two or more organizations that have worked together to 
promote similar work in the past, or are proposing to work together for this project.  
 
Is it required that the city we are targeting be a partner in this project? 
No. There is no requirement for partnerships; however, supporting partnerships and collaboration is a goal of this 
program and part of the selection criteria. 
 
Is the outcome specifically a pro-housing target adopted by a specific city, or can the outcome be newly activated 
constituencies supporting the development of new housing in their community? 
The outcome does not necessarily need to be a formally adopted strategy by government body.  
 
Are there prior recipients of the call for collaboration or this year the first round of funding? 
This is the first time this funding is available.  
 
If the project is in partnership with various cities, is it recommended the CBO apply as lead partner? 
For Partnership Grants, there is no preference if an organization or public agency applies. For Spark Grants, public 
agencies are not eligible to apply and a 501(c)(3) organization is needed to apply.  



 

  

 

   
 

 

 
Are Project Staff Salaries (those working directly on the proposed project) considered part of the administrative 
expenses with a maximum spend of 5% of the grant? 
Staff support to manage and implement eligible activities is an eligible activity. Costs incurred by existing staff must 
clearly delineate and differentiate work that is funded by existing sources. 
Tasks such as reviewing project invoices, processing project invoices, and preparing reports and metrics of project 
progress and completion are considered administrative activities. 
 
We don’t have a current Strategic Plan, but we have a Business Plan from 2017 that still reflects some of our current 
activities. One of our goals for this year is to update our Business Plan and develop a new Strategic Plan. For the 
attachments section, can we upload our 2017 Business Plan? 
Developing a strategic plan for a land trust is an eligible activity. You may include previous business plans in your 
application as an attachment. 
 
Can a nonprofit apply for the spark grant twice for two separate capacity building opportunities? Can applicants 
submit grant applications and sign on as partners for another grant applicant? 
Each lead applicant should submit only one proposal. Partner agencies/organizations can be members of other 
proposals (for example, a city can be a lead applicant as well as be a member to multiple proposals of other lead 
agencies), but the work should not be receiving funds from multiple proposals for the same work.  
 
How often will you require status updates/reporting from grantees? 
There is a required interim report due on December 1, 2021 which will be a narrative of the progress of goals and 
benchmarks outline in the proposal. CCF will provide a template for this report.  
 
In order for housing production to be truly equitable we as a CBO strongly believe in opposing market-rate/ luxury 
developments that do not meet the needs of our communities. We want to ensure that if we were to be awarded this 
grant, it would not restrict our ability to do that in the future. Would that be the case?  
This funding will not and cannot restrict any other work or activities that your organization is engaged in or could be 
engaged in the future.  
 
If the organization is currently in the process of getting their 501(c)3, can we still partner with them?  
Only the lead agency will be required to have its 501(c)(3) certificate, or have a fiscal sponsor. A pending application for 
a tax-exempt status does not meet the threshold.  
 
Our initiative is county-wide but resources could be targeted to specific cities or areas within LA County. Has CCF 
identified priority areas or cities that should be prioritized in the grant application? 
CCF has not identified priority areas for these funds. Applicant should discuss in the proposal why the targeted areas 
should be prioritized when making a decision on funding.  
 



 

  

 

   
 

 

Would organizations that have already received support from the funders of this initiative -- CCF, Irvine, and/or Chan 
Zuckerberg -- for housing work be at a disadvantage in applying either as a lead applicant or as one member of a 
collaborative application? 
The review panel will not penalize applicants because they are already funded for this work from one of the funders 
(SCAG, Irvine Foundation, CCF, or CZI). If project already has funding (regardless of who the funder is), proposal should 
include a detailed explanation of what the new funds will be used for.  
 
We are a public agency planning to submit in collaboration with a nonprofit. Our goals are in line with the eligible 
activities including outreach, research, and policy development. Given that our submission and project will be carried 
out as a partnership -- can this grant funding be used to support staffing in a city department or are only CBOs eligible 
to use funding for staffing? 
Funds can be used for city staffing.  
 
In reference to the required organizational attachments, are all of these documents only required from the CBO 
partner or are public agency partners also expected to submit? For instance, will public agencies need to provide any 
of the following: Agency Operating Budget (current fiscal year), Organizational Chart, List of Board Members with 
Demographics, Bios of Key Staff, IRS W9 Form, Letters of Support from Partnering Organizations, List of Funders, 
Strategic Plan, Financial Projections (2 – 5 years), Most recent Audited Financial Statements? 
Public agencies will be required to submit the forms listed above. If a specific document is not available, the agency 
should provide a comparable substitute (e.g. a department budget instead of an agency operating budget) or 
a document explaining that said document is not available.    
  
 
 


